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Napoleón Gómez Umrtia, and

Sindicato Nacional de Trabajadores Mineros, Metalúrgicos, Siderurgicos y Similares de la

República Mexicana (SNTMMSRM) (a.k.a: Los Mineros or National Mine, Metal, and Steel

Workers Union of Mexico)

Plaintiffs

and

Grupo Mexico, S.A.B. de C.V,

German Feliciano LaneaMota-Velasco, Oscar Gonzales Rocha, Eduardo García Puebla, Garcia

Puebla Consultores, Elias Morales Hernandez, Miguel Castilleja Mendiola and José Martin
Perales Lozano

Defendants

NOTICE OF CI\[L CLAIM

This action has been started by the Plaintiffs for the relief set out in Part 2 below.

If you intend to respond to this action, you or your lawyer must

(a) file a response to civil claim in Form 2 in the above-named registry of this court

within the time for response to civil claim described below, and

(b) serve a copy of the filed response to civil claim on the Plaintiffs.

If you intend to make a counterclaim, you or your lawyer must

(a) file a response to civil claim in Form 2 and a counterclaim in Form 3 in the

above-named registry of this court within the time for response to civil claim

described below, and

(b) serve a copy of the filed response to civil claim and counterclaim on the Plaintiffs

and on any new parties named in the counterclaim'

JUDGMENT MAy BE PRONOLTNCED AGAINST YOU IF YOU FAIL to file the response to

civil claim within the time for response to civil claim described below.

Time for response to civil claim

A response to civil claim must be filed and served on the Plaintifß,

In
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(a) if you \ /ere served with the notice of civil claim anywhere in Canada, within
2I days after that service,

(b) if you were seryed with the notice of civil claim anywhere in the United States of
America, within 35 days after that service,

(c) if you were served with the notice of civil claim anywhere else, within 49 days

after that service, or

(d) if the time for response to civil claim has been set by order of the court, within
that time.

CLAIM OF THE PLAINTIFFS

Part I:STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. PARTIES

Napoleón Gómez Urrutia

The Plaintiff Napoleón Gómez Unutia ("Gómez Urrutia") is a citizen of Mexico and a

permanent resident of Canada, who currently resides in British Columbia' Gómez Umrtia is

an intemational labour leader. He has served and continues to serve as the Secretary General

of Sindicato Nacional de Trabajadores Mineros, Metalúrgicos Siderúrgicos y Similares de la

República Mexicana, also known as Los Mineros or the National Mine, Metal, and Steel

Workers Union of Mexico (the "Miners Union") since his election 1n2002' He was

reelected Secretary General in 2008 and in 2012.In20l2,he was also unanimously elected

President of the Miners Union.

2. GómezUmrtia was trained in economics at the University of Oxford where he obtained his

master's degree in economics. He also began his doctoral studies at Oxford. He graduated

with honours from the Department of Economics at the National Autonomous University of

Mexico. Prior to becoming the Secretary General of the Miners Union, Gómez Urrutia

served as Director General of the Mexican National Mint from 1979 to 1992, and served as

the International President of the Mint Directors Conference, the global national mint

coordinating organizati,on, a position he held from 1986 to 1988.

3. Gómez Urrutia was the 2011 recipient of the prestigious American Federation of

Labour/Congress of Industrial Organizations prestigious Intemational Meany-Kirkland
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Human Rights Award and in the same year was also nominated for the Edelstam Prize in

Sweden and Norway's Arthur Svensson InternationalPúze for Trade Union Rights.

4. From May 2005 to May 2012,Mr. Gomez was a member of the International Executive

Committee of the International Metalworkers Federation ("IMF"), based in Geneva,

Switzerland.

5. In June 2012,Gómez Urrutia was unanimously elected to the Executive Committee of the

IndustriAll Global Union, a new international labour federation created at that time by the

mergel of the IMF, the International Federation of Chemical, Energy, Mine and General

Vy'orkers Unions and the International Textile, Garment and Leather'Workers Federation'

IndustrialAll represents more than 50 million members from 140 countries and is based in

Geneva, Switzerland.

The Miners Union

6. The plaintiff Miners Union has an address at Doctor YéfüzNo' 668, Col' Narvarte Deleg'

Benito Juârez,C.P. 03020, México, D.F. The Miners Union has 290,000 members (active

and retired) in Mexico, of which approximately 6,400 are current employees of Grupo

Mexico S.A.B. de C.V, one of the defendants. The Miners Union represents and advocates

on behalf of its members to improve their working conditions including by negotiating

collective bargaining agreements on their behalf with employers such as the Defendant

Grupo Mexico S.A.B. de C.V. The Miners Union's national Secretary General is the

P laintiff Gómez Umrtia.

Grupo Mexico S.A.B. de C.Y

7. The Defendant Grupo Mexico S.A.B. de C.V ("Grupo Mexico") is a holding company with

an address at Campos Eliseos No. 400 Lomas de Chapultepec C'P' 11000, Mexico D'F' and

whose main activities are in the mining-metallurgic industry, the exploration, exploitation,

and benefit of metallic and non-metallic ores, multimodal freight railroad service, and

infrastructure development. Grupo Mexico operates primarily in Mexico, Peru' and the

United States, and it is one of the major copper producers in the world' Grupo Mexico is
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listed on the Mexican Stock Exchange and is one of the most actively traded stocks on the

exchange.

8. Along with the other Defendants, Grupo Mexico conspired to and did defame the Plaintiffs

by funding, authorizing, inciting and/or encouraging the making and repetition of

defamatory allegations and the spreading of them further afield.

German Feliciano Larrea Mota-Velasco

g. The Defendant German Feliciano Larrea Mota-Velasco ("Larrea") has an address at

Campos Eliseos No. 400 Lomas de Chapultepec C.P. 11000, Mexico D'F. and was at all

material times the Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Executive

Officer of Grupo Mexico, Larreawas previously Executive Vice Chairman of Grupo

Mexico and has been a member of the Board of Directors since 1 98 1 .

10. Larrea is also Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of

Empresarios Industriales de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. (holding), Compañia Perforadora

Mexico, S.A. de C.V., (a drilling company), Mexico Compañia Constructora, S'4. de C.V.

(a construction company) and Fondo Inmobiliario (a real estate company)' Laneahas also

been Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of Grupo Ferroviario

Mexicano S.A. de C.V (a railroad company) since 1997.

ll.Laneaalso founded Grupo Impresa, a printing and publishing company in 1978, remaining

as the Chairman and Chief Executive Ofhcer until 1989 when the company was sold' He is

also a member of the Board of Directors of Banco Nacional de Mexico, S.A. (Citigroup),

which forms part of Grupo Financiero Banamex, S.A. de C.V., Consejo Mexicano de

Hombres de Negocios, and of Grupo Televisa, S.A.B (a television company).

12. Along with the other Defendants, Lateaconspired to and did defame the Plaintiffs by

funding, authorizing, inciting andlor encouraging the making and repetition of defamatory

allegations and the spreading of them further afield'
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Oscar Gonzales Rocha

13. The Defendant Oscar Gonzales Rocha ("Rocha") was at all material times the Chief

Executive Officer of Grupo Mexico. He has an address at Campos Eliseos No' 400 Lomas

de Chapultepec C.P, 11000, Mexico D.F.

14. Along with the other Defendants, Rocha conspired to and did defame the Plaintiffs by

funding, authorizing, inciting andlor encouraging the making and repetition of defamatory

allegations and the spreading of them further afield.

Elias Morales Hernandez, Miguet Castilleja Mendiola and José Martin Perales

Lozano

15. The Defendant Elias Morales Hernandez ("Morales") is a former member of the Miners

Union's executive committee. Morales was expelled from the Miners Union at the May

2001 Miners Union National Convention further to an intemal investigation undertaken by

the Miners Union's Justice and Honour Committee which found that Morales had been

passing confidential information from Miners Union meetings to Grupo Mexico. Morales is

a former employee of Grupo Mexico and at all material times has had close ties with Larrea,

Rocha and other executives of Grupo Mexico.

16. The Defendant Miguel Castilleja Mendiola ("Castilleja") was also a member of the Miners

Union and an employee of Grupo Mexico. He was expelled from the Miners Union on April

g,2002for soliciting members of the Miners Union to join another dissident union and for

passing conhdential Miners Union information to Grupo Mexico'

17. The Defendant José Martin Perales Lozano ("Perales") was also a member of the Miners

Union and an employee of Grupo Mexico. He was expelled from the Miners Union on 16

October, 2001 for soliciting members of the Miners Union to join another dissident union

and passing confidential Miners Union information to Grupo Mexico'

18. Morales, Castilleja and Parales were disaffected former members of the Miners Union who,

in consort with the other Defendants, attempted to oust Gómez Urrutia as leader of the

Miners Union and conspired with the other Defendants to and did fabricate criminal
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accusations against GómezUrrutia, which were defamatory of the Plaintiffs, as further

described herein.

Garcia Puebla Consultores and Eduardo García Puebla

19. Garcia Puebla Consultores is a public relations ltrm operating out of Mexico City. Its

principle is the Defendant Eduardo GarcíaPuebla. Garcia Puebla Consultores and/or

Eduardo García Puebla were hired by Grupo Mexico and conspired with the other

Defendants to defame and did defame the Plaintiffs by assisting the other Defendants to

attempt to conceal the fact that they initiated and paid for a relentless and continuous

campaign to disseminate and perpetuate the fabricated criminal allegations through a variety

of media channels and by a variety other means'

20. Eduardo García puebla ("Garcia Puebla") is the principle of Garcia Puebla Consultores'

Garcia Puebla was hired by the Defendant Grupo Mexico and./or Lanea and, along with the

other Defendants, conspired to defame and did defame the Plaintiffs'

21. Along with the other Defendants, Garcia Puebla Consultores and Garcia Puebla conspired to

and did defame the Plaintiffs by assisting, funding, authorizing, inciting and/or encouraging

the making and repetition of defamatory allegations and the spreading of them further afield'

B. NATURE OF THE CLAIM

22.Thefacts pleaded herein demonstrate how the Defendants conspired to and did defame the

plaintiffs by maliciously bringing false accusations of a serious criminal offence to the

procuraduria General de la Republica ("PGR") (the equivalent of the public prosecutor's

offrce in Canada) against the Plaintiff GómezUrrutia, all the while knowing that the

accusations were false and knowing that in accordance with Mexican law, if charged,

GômezUrrutia would not be granted bail upon the issuance of a warrant for his arrest and

would therefore be jailed at least until the end of his trial, which trial could take years to

even begin. In furtherance of the conspiracy to maliciously defame the Plaintifß, the

Defendants knowingly went forward to make false accusations, which caused warrants to be

issued for the arrest of Gómez Umrtia, forcing him into exile in Vancouver, British

Columbia.
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23. The accusations leveled against Gómez Umrtia by the Defendants are entirely baseless and

brought for the sole purpose of injuring the Plaintiffs' reputation, harming the Plaintiffs and

attempting to break the Miners Union. The false accusations are profoundly malicious and

were motivated by a desire for financial prof,rts by means of reducing the health, safety and

labour costs of Grupo Mexico so as to ultimately artificially increase Grupo Mexico's

operational profits.

24. Although it is difhcult to predict what manipulations the Defendants may engage in to

fabricate other charges, as of the date of the claim, all of the outstanding warrants for the

arrest of Gómez Urrutia have now been formally dismissed by the Mexican courts. The

baseless nature of the accusations is also attested to by the fact that notwithstanding

persistent diplomatic efforts by the Government of Mexico , Canada has refused to initiate

extradition proceedings against Gómez Urrutia, as the Defendants' accusations were found

by Canada to be without merit.

25. Moreover, Interpol has deleted an international arrest warrant for Gómez Umrtia, which had

been requested by the Government of Mexico on the basis that"information recorded

concerning him lGómez Umrtia] raised strong doubts concerning its compliance with

INTERPOL'y rules".

26. The Defendants defamatory accusations were republished, read and viewed many times over

in newspapers and on television, often paid for by the Defendants, and were republished and

read in newspapers and on the internet accessible all over the world, including in British

Columbia. The Defendants are responsible under defamation law in British Columbia for

these republications. The Plaintiffs therefore seek general, aggravated, punitive, and special

damages from the Defendants in libel, slander and injurious falsehood. The amount sought

for punitive damages will be commensurate with the unprecedented nature of the

Defendants' conduct: a malicious, relentless, well-funded effort to destroy a man, and the

organization he leads, by the making of false accusations of grave criminality, all motivated

by greed and the desire for profit.

C. BACKGROUND TO DEFAMATION

The Miners Union properly obtains 5"/o of a Grupo Mexico subsidiary
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2T.When,during a wave of privatizations in Mexico, Grupo Mexico bought the La Caridad and

Cananea coppeï mines through its subsidiary Mexcobre Corp. ("Mexcombre") and

Mexcananea Corp. ("Mexcananea") from the Mexican government in 1988 and 1990

respectively, the Miners Union's support for the purchases was fundamental to the

privatization process. In exchange for backing Grupo Mexico and helping the privatization

to be approved, politically and legally, the Government of Mexico and the Miners Union

(prior to Gómez Urrutia joining the Miners Union) negotiated that 5%o of the shares of

Mexcobre and Mexcananea would pass to the Miners Union. Grupo Mexico never did

deliver the shares to the Miners Union, but instead, 15 years later, and after protracted

litigation, ultimately transferred to the Miners Union the 1990 share-value equivalent in

cash: US$55 million. This money was put into a trust to be administered by the Miners

Union (the "Trust").

Gómez Urrutia's leadership of Miners Union

28. Since Gómez Urrutia assumed leadership of the Miners Union in2002, the Miners Union

has resolutely sought to defend the health, safety and economic interests of its membership'

In the course of doing so, the Miners Union has conducted approximately twenty (20)

strikes, all of which were legal, compared to three (3) in the previous decade and has

achieved wage increases (albeit from a very low base) averaging approximately l2o/oro I4%o

per year, in comparison to an average of between 4o/o and 60/o inthe case of other unions'

GómezUrrutia's attempt at democratrtrjingthe Mexican Labour congress

29.In early 2006, GómezUrrutia joined forces with Isaías Got:øáiez Cuevas, the national

general secretary of the Revolutionary Confederation of Mexican'Workers, to campaign for

the control, reform and democratizationof Mexico's Labor Congress; Mexico's leading

national amalgamation of unions. The Mexican Labour Congtess has traditionally been

criticized as too friendly to government and Mexican big business. The Labour Congress'

national leader at the time was Victor Flores Morales. On February 14,2006, Isaías

GonzáiezCuevas and Gómez Umrtia were elected to lead the Mexican Congress' On

February 17,Z¡06,the Miners Union's offlrces were vandalized and robbed by thugs who

were intent upon intimidating GómezUrrutia from assuming the leadership of the Mexican

Labour Congress.
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The agreement and plan to defame and the Defamatory Accusation

30. Gómez Urrutia's willingness to take his members on strike to advance their rights and his

challenge of Flores Morales for the head of the Mexican Labour Congress combined to

motivate the Defendants to initiate patently false criminal accusations against the Plaintiff

GómezUmrtia in an attempt to marginalize him and to ultimately break the Miners Union.

31. On or around 20 January 2006, the Defendants maliciously agreed to file a criminal

complaint against GómezUrrutia and other union leaders for allegedly misappropriating the

US$55 million in liquidated Mexcobre and Mexcananea shares that had been properly

transferred to the Miners Union (the "Defamatory Accusation"). The Defendants knew that

the Defamatory Accusation was false. A criminal complaint was filed by the Defendants

Morales, Castilleja and Perales who were authorized, incited, assisted and/or encouraged to

by the Defendants Grupo Mexico, Larcea, Rocha, Garcia Puebla and Garcia Puebla

Consultores. A copy of the criminal complaint is attached hereto as Schedule "A" and

incorporated by reference to this Notice of Civil Claim.

32.TheDefamatory Accusation led to formal criminal charges being laid against the Plaintiff

GómezUm¡tia and three (3) other Miners Union executives: specifically, Hector Felix

Estrella, Juan Linares and José Angel Rocha. The essence of the Defamatory Accusation

and the criminal charge against Gómez Um¡tia and other Miners Union offrcials was that

when they terminated the Trust on February 22,2005 and transferred its assets to the Miners

Union they committed fraud because the monies should instead have been distributed

directly to some or all of the miners individually. The Defendants knew that this was not the

case

33. The Defamatory Accusation was later repeated and republished many times over Ín

publications all over the world, including in British Columbia. Schedule '(8" to this Notice

of Civil Claim incorporates to this Notice of Civil Claim a sample of the print media articles

that have repeated the Defamatory Accusation.

34. In addition, the Defend antLanea,Rocha and Grupo Mexico, aided by the Defendants

Garcia Puebla and Garcia Puebla Consultores, purchased journalistic, editorial and paid

advertisements in many Mexican newspapers to repeat the Defamatory Accusation'
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35. Moreover, the Defendant Laneaused his influence as a board member of one of the largest

television companies in Mexico, Televisa, to influence Televisa to take an adversarial

journalistic and editorial stance in regard to the Plaintiffs, which further spread afield the

Defamatory Accusation and inj urious fal sehoods.

36. Furthermore, the Defendants Larreaand Grupo Mexico funded millions of dollars' worth of

paid television programming to repeat the Defamatory Accusation and further spread afield

the defamation and injurious falsehoods. Copies of such television programming are

attached hereto and incorporated by reference to this Notice of Civil Claim at Schedule

('c",

Gómez Urrutia was illegally removed by the Government of Mexico then reinstated by

the Mexican Courts as head of the Miners Union

37. OnFebruary 17 2006, Gómez Umrtia was illegally removed by the Mexican Secretary of

Labour, Salazar Sâenz,as head of the Miners Union. The announcement of this removal

occurred shortly after he demanded an investigation into the death of 65 workers after the

pasta de Conchos coal-mine explosion, which GómezUmrtia called "industrial homicide",

and which led to widespread industrial unrest. Miners, electricians, bus drivers, airline

workers, teachers and farmers all marched to protest government interference in union

activities

38. Moreover, on February 17,2006,the Labour Minister in the Mexican Government had

secretly purported to sign over control of the Miners Union to the expelled Defendant

Morales by granting him a toma de nota, although it did not announce the revocation of

Gómez Um¡tia's governmental recognition until February 28,2006. A toma de nota isthe

legal instrument the Government of Mexico uses to sanction the leadership of a union'

39. Notwithstanding Mexico's illegal effort to strip GómezUmrtia of his Miners Union

authority, GómezUrrutia nonetheless continued to act as the de føcto leader of the Miners

Union and continued to receive the support of an overwhelming majority of the Miners

Union's members. At the Miners Union's convention in 2008, Gómez Umrtia was

unanimously elected for another six-year term.
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40, On ly'ray 2,2072,the Supreme Court of Mexico ruled that the Mexican Government's

refusal to recognize Gómez Umrtia's legal authority as the elected leader of the Miners

Union was unlawful with the result that the Court ordered that the Secretary of Labor issue a

toma de nota formally recognizing his leadership for the 2008-2014 term'

Gómez Urrutia accuses Grupo Mexico of "industrial homicide" in consequence of the

Pasta de Conchos mine disaster that killed 65 miners

4l . On February I9,2006,the Pasta de Conchos coal mine in San Juan de Sabinas, State of

Coahuila in Mexico, exploded, killing 65 workers, the majority of which were Miners Union

members. Gómez Umrtia immediately flew to Coahuila, where he publicly accused Grupo

Mexico of "industrial homicide". This allegation was justihed as prior to the Pasta de

Conchos mine explosion, the Miners Union had campaigned for the improvement of the

pasta de Conchos mine and had indeed gone on strike 14 times to protest the Defendant

Grupo Mexico's refusal to review and address security and health issues within the mine'

42. Following the mine disaster, Grupo Mexico announced that rescue teams could not enter the

mine due to high levels of methane gas, and on February 25,2006, only six (6) days after

the explosion, Grupo Mexico also announced that the rescue mission would be abruptly

terminated. According to Grupo Mexico none of the sixty-five (65) trapped miners could

have survived, especially given the fact that Grupo Mexico had only allotted each miner

with one oxygen pack with the capability of providing only six hours of oxygen' Prior to

halting the rescue effort, Grupo Mexico sought and was provided with a military blockade

of the disaster site.

43. However, Grupo Mexico's decision to halt the rescue mission was made prematurely before

obvious rescue options were explored. For example, no attempt was made to dig through

preexisting air holes, as \ilas done in Chile four (4) years later when 33 miners were rescued'

Moreover, it was clear that Grupo Mexico did not have any effective disaster relief plan to

deal with a catastrophic explosion of this nature.

44. On July 12,2004, approximately nineteen (19) months prior to the explosion, the

Government of Mexico initiated an inspection of the mine. Forty-eight (48) deficiencies

were recorded within the three hours that the Government conducted the inspection.
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45. Based on the results of this inspection, a Safety and Health Measures Order, signed by the

Director of the Federal Labour Delegation in the State of Coahuila, was issued to the

Defendant Grupo Mexico on September 12,2005. The order required the Defendant Grupo

Mexico to resolve thiny-four (34) of the forty-eight (48) deficiencies noted in the inspection

record. The order also stated that six (6) of the recorded deficiencies needed to be remedied

immediately in order to ensure that the lives of the workers were not placed at risk.

46. Deficiencies recorded at this initial inspection included high levels of methane gas in the

mine, large quantities of highly combustible coal dust in the mine, as well as electrical,

ventilation, and structural problems. Essentially, Grupo Mexico refused, despite numerous

demands, to build a second tunnel that would serve two purposes instrumental to the safety

and well-being of the miners: 1) it would have provided an emergency exit in the event that

one entrance became blocked, and2) it would have dramatically improved the air quality of

the mine by allowing bad air to exit via one tunnel and good air to enter via another'

47 .Infollow-up investigations, the Mexican Geological Service concluded fhat a possible cause

of the mine disaster included the fact that the mine was operating on a continuous basis at a

higher capacity than recommended, resulting in carbon methane emissions reaching

explosive levels. The Mexican Geological Service also concluded that the explosion may

have been caused by the coal dust that had accumulated in the mining areas) and from

poorly maintained equipment and the improper use of welding and cutting equipment in the

mining area.

4g. Following the disaster, the Director of Inspection Policies and the Assessment of the Federal

General Directorate of the Labour Inspection ordered an extraordinary inspection of the

general safety and health conditions in the mine. This inspection took place on March 3,

2006. The Defendant Grupo Mexico was ordered to provide documentation attesting to

actions taken in regards to a number of safety and health requirements. The result of the

order revealed that the Defendants had failed to demonstrate compliance with thirty-seven

(37) of September 12,2005 Safety and Health Measures order.

The Defam atory Accusation is clearly false and made with knowledge that it was false
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49. The Mexican Govemment's initial investigation of the Defamatory Accusation was carried

out by the Federal Attorney General under a federal statute, which required a technical

opinion (the "Technical Opinion") from the National Banking and Securities Commission

(the "CNBV"). The issuance of a CNBV Technical Opinion confirming that a crime has

occurred is a condition precedent to the commencement of a criminal prosecution in relation

to such matters under Mexican law. In Gómez Urrutia's case, the Technical Opinion

rendered by the CNBV on March !0,2006, specifically stated the Plaintifß' handling of the

Trust did not violate Federal Law. Notwithstanding notice of this opinion, the Defendants

nonetheless chose to continue their malicious unfounded accusations.

50. The Defendants, including Lanea,Rocha and Grupo Mexico and their proxies Morales,

Castilleja and Perales, knew that their accusations that the Plaintiffs had committed a crime

were false. Indeed, Laneahimself filed a petition to a Mexican bankruptcy court to conect a

mistake made in a court document. The document had mistakenly stated that the 5olo share

capital was for the miners, individually, not for their authorized union. Larrea's petition

clearly stated that the 5Yo sharecapital belonged to the Miners Union and not the miners

individually. Specihcally, the petition dated August 20,1990, signed by Larrea, stated:

As can be noted in the comment presented by his Honor in subsection C of
point VIII previously transcribed, there is a mistake since it saYs that the

company I represent offered to deliver 5 percent of its share capital to the

workers of the bankrupted company, when in fact the companv I represent

to o

Related Workers of the Mexican Republic, as Trust Beneficiary of the Trust

established on November 14,1988, with Multibanco Cometmex S.N.C

[emphasis added]

51. Upon receiving Larrea's petition, on August 30, 1990, a judge issued an order modifying the

bankruptcy document to show that the assets belonged to the Miners Union, not to any

particular group of workers.

52. Further to the Defamatory Accusation by the Defendants , GómezUrrutia and his family

received numerous death threats.

53. In consequence of the February 2006 illegal revocation of Gómez Urrutia's toma de nota,

the Government of Mexico's seizure of the Miner's Union bank accounts, as well as

various suggestions that the Defendants were planning to initiate false criminal accusations
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against him (and knowing that pursuant to such charges, bail could not be granted under

Mexican law), Gómez Urrutia travelled to the United States and then to Canada, where he

has resided with his family in Vancouver, BC ever since in order to avoid political

persecution.

54. For the past seven years the Defendants have engaged in what can only be described as a

malicious, profit-motivated campaign aimed at silencing Gómez Umrtia and breaking the

Miners Union. Unfortunately, even after the initial criminal charges that were laid in 2006

alleging that Gómez Urrutia had misappropriated Miners Union monies completely failed to

meet the requirements for a federal prosecution, urged on by the Defendants, Mexican

prosecutors simply brought a myriad of new carbon-copy charges at the state level in

different jurisdictions based on exactly the same allegations. These state charges have now

all been dismissed as the senior Mexican Courts, to their credit, have consistently held that

no crime had ever been committed.

55, At the urging of the Defendants, the Government of Mexico attempted to bring yet another

federal prosecution despite the fact that the CNBV was of the opinion that there had been no

violation of Mexican law. The Federal Courts held that the Trust had operated in a

completely legal manner and that all of Gómez Umrtia's actions were legal' As of the date

of this claim, every single state and federal charge filed has been found to be groundless by

the Mexican Courts. Nonetheless, in defiance of the Mexican judiciary, which has

consistently held that Gómez Umrtia, nor any of his co-accused, did anything improper with

respect to the Miners Union's funds, and that there was in fact no crime committed, the

Defendants have continued to make public accusations against Gómez Urrutia.

56. The Defendants have been able to delay and extend this defamatory course of conduct in

part due to Mexico's civilian based criminal justice system, which, unlike common law

criminal justice systems; is largely driven by the allegations and wishes of the complainant.

In Mexico, a complainant can, for example, refuse to bring a complaint or withdraw a

complaint and, as a general rule, if this is the case, the prosecution cannot proceed'
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Although Canada and ultimately Interpol have refused to recognize the Defamatory
Accusation, the Plaintiffs were nonetheless harmed

57. The Canadian Government has steadfastly refused to extradite Gómez Umrtia to Mexico to

face these spurious charges despite inordinate and public political pressure from the

Mexican government.

58. Indeed, on Novemb er 2,2010, an adjudicator of Citizenship and Immigration Canada

granted Gómez Urrutia permanent residence status notwithstanding the then outstanding

warrant for his arrest in Mexico.

59. Furthermore, to advance their scheme to marginalize Gómez Urrutia and to attempt to break

the Miners Union, the Defendants urged the Mexican Government to request that Interpol

issue a Red Notice, which is in effect an intemational arrest warrant, which was in fact then

issued against Gómez Um¡tia on June 5,2006. The Defendants have thereby made global

travel impossible for Gómez Umrtia. As a result, GómezUmrtia cannot properly fulfill his

responsibilities in his capacity as an international labour leader, and to marshal international

support for the Miners Union.

60. On May 23,2012, submissions were made by the Plaintiff Gómez Urrutia to Interpol

requesting that it delete the Red Notice on the basis that Mexico's request for it was without

foundation and politically motivated.

61. In a decision of the First Federal Collegiate Tribunal in Criminal matters dated February 14,

2013,the Collegiate Tribunal ordered Mexico to request that Interpol delete the Red Notice

it had requested and also held that Mexico's support of the Interpol Red Notice violated

Gómez Urrutia' s constitutional ri ghts.

62. OnMarch 29,2}I3,Interpol deleted the Red Notice against the Plaintiff Gómez Urrutia

stating that"information recorded concerning him fGómez Unutia] raised strong doubts

concerning its compliance with INTERPOL's rLtles" '
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Although the Plaintiffs received local and International supporf their reputation and

effectiveness \ryas nonetheless harmed

63. On April 3 2006,a national strike broke in Mexico supporting GómezUrrutia. On April 20,

2006, in the State of Michoacan, the Govemment of Mexico sent 1,000 troops to end the

strike. As a result, two (2) workers were killed and 100 injured.

64. GomezUrrutia enjoys the support of intemational labour movement. The Defendants'

Defamatory Accusation and the Mexican Government's follow on political persecution of

GómezUmrtia have also been thoroughly condemned by numerous high-ranking

democratically elected officials around the globe.

65. Notwithstanding the Plaintiffs efforts to mitigate the damages that have flowed from the

Defamatory Accusation by managing the Miners Union and discharging his IndustriAll

responsibilities from his home in British Columbia, his effectiveness in this has been

compromised as a consequence of his forced exile and his inability to travel internationally

Inappropriate conduct of the Government of Mexico and the Defendants

66. On 27 February,2}}7,the Governor of the State of Coahuila, Mr. Humberto Moreira

publically stated that the President of Mexico at the time, Mr. Vicente Fox, had pressured

him to fabricate criminal charges against Gómez Urrutia in his State. Mr. Moreira

announced publicly that he had refused to do so and insisted that Gómez Urrutia had

committed no crime.

67.InJune 2008, on behalf of the Defendants, Mr. Alonso Elizondo Ancira offered Gómez

Urrutia US$l00 million if he resigned from the Miners Union. The offer was rejected by

Gómez Urrutia,

68. On May 3 7,2010 a meeting took place attended by Mr. Alvaro Castro, a representative of

the Mexican Secretary of Labor, GómezUrrutia's Mexican counsel Marco Del Toro, and

Mr. Benjamin Davis, the Director of International Affairs for the United Steelworkers of

America. At that meeting, Mr. Castro suggested that if the Miners Union would resolve a

long standing labor dispute at Mexico's largest copper mine that Juan Linares, one of the

Miners Union officials who was being held in custody in relation to the charges relating to
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the Defamatory Accusation, might be released from jail. By any democratic or ethical

standard, it is highly improper for a very senior representative of the Government of Mexico

to link the outcome of a criminal proceeding against a union leader to a request for labour

concessions in favour of a particular Mexican mining company.

Impact of the Defamatory Accusation

69. The Defamatory Accusation led to warrants being issued for the arrest of the Plaintiff

GómezUrrutia, and a protracted legal battle ensued, which has had life altering

consequences for GómezUrrutia (and his family) and which has compromised the Miners

Union's ability to represent and advance the interests of its members.

70. As a result of the Defamatory Accusation, the Plaintiff Gómez Umrtia has been brought into

public scandal and contempt, and suffered, and will continue to suffer grave damage to his

character and reputation.

71. The Plaintiff Gómez Urrutia and his family have suffered distress and embarrassment in

British Columbia and all over the world as a result of the Defamatory Accusation.

Part 2:RELIEF SOUGHT

L The Plaintiffs seek the following relief from the Defendants, jointly and severally

(a) General damages;

(b) Aggravated damages;

(c) Punitive damages;

(d) Special damages, including :

for Gómez Um¡tia's living expenses in Vancouver;

legal fees incurred in Canada and in Mexico to fight the Defamatory Accusation

and the ensuing legal proceedings;
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costs to respond to the Defamatory Accusation in the media, and to thereby

attempt to mitigate damages;

travel and accommodation costs for members of the Miners Union's executive

committee to meet with GómezUmÍiain Canada;

Financial loss associated with the restraint of Miners Union property and property

belonging to Gómez Urrutia, including the inability to invest money and obtain

returns on bank accounts and investments;

(e) An order that an apology be published in the Vancouver Sun, The Province and in the

Mexican newspapers Reforma and El Economista, as well as on the Mexican

television networks Televisa and Azteca;

(f) Interim, interlocutory and permanent injunctions to restrain the Defendants from

further publishing or causing to be published the Defamatory Accusation or any

similar words defamatory of the Plaintiffs;

(g) Interest pursuant to the Court Order Interest Acl, RSBC 1996, c 79;

(h) Such other relief as this Honourable Court deems just to award;

(i) Special costs

Part 3:LEGAL BASIS

2 The Plaintiffs rely on the law of libel, slander and injurious falsehood.

3. The Defamatory Accusation was published by the Defendants and in its natural and

ordinary meaning and in the context in which it was made was defamatory.(in the sense

that it would tend to lower the Plaintiffs in the eyes of a reasonable person and injure the

Plaintiffs' reputation), and was meant and was understood by the public to mean that the

Plaintiffs are criminals, are corrupt, are dishonest, and are not acting in the best interest of

the Miners Union's membership.

4. The Defendants made the Defamatory Accusation knowing that it was false and knowing

that in accordance with Mexican law, if Gómez Umrtia was charged and arrested he would
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not be granted bail pending trial and would therefore be jailed at least until the end of his

trial. The Defendants maliciously made the Defamatory Accusation against the Plaintiffs to

inflict as much harm as possible to the Plaintiffs' reputation and cause the Plaintifß harm.

5. The Defendants also knew that by making the Defamatory Accusation to the PGR, the

natural and probable result was that the Defamatory Accusation would be repeated,

reprinted or republished to the public and read or viewed all over the world, including in

British Columbia, or there was a significant risk that such an accusation would be repeated,

reprinted or republished to the public and read or viewed all over the world, including in

British Columbia. As such, the Defendants are legally responsible for any and all

republications of the Defamatory Accusation. Examples of the republication and repetition

of the Defamatory Accusation are found at Schedule"B". Schedule "B" incorporates by

reference these articles to this Notice of Civil Claim.

Republications of the Defamatory Accusation (in Print)

6. The cover of the August 27,2006 edition of The Province newspaper included a picture of

Gómez Umrtia and the following headline in large bold letters:

Fired as leader of a large miners union and accused of embezzling millions,

Napoleón Gomez Umrria flees to Vancouver and threatens to destabilize

Mexico if the govemment doesn't exonerate and reinstate him

FUGITIVE UNION BOSS HIDES IN 8.C., THREATENS MEXICAN
CHAOS

7 . The article in connection to this headline on the cover of the August 27,2006 edition of

The Province is still available electronically online (a copy republished online on April4,

2013 is attached at Schedule "8") and was entitled: "Who will blink in Mexican Standoff?

The leader of a powerful Mexican mine workers' union- who fled to B.C. after being

accused of embezzling $61 million- has vowed to launch, by cellphone, a national strike

unprecedented in Mexico's modern history". The article repeats and republishes the

Defamatory Accusation, and specifically states:

"Napoleón GómezUmrtia is accused of acts of comrption against workers

andihere is information that he, from outside the country fMexico],
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speciflcally Canada, was directing this regrettable operation [civil unrest]"

Fox [President Vicente] has been quoted saying'

t.l
The Mexican Secretary of Labour has said that his government will not

recognize him as head of the union nor retract its accusations he pilfered

workers'funds.

8. The Province has a wide readership and is published electronically and read all over the

world, including in British Columbia.

g. An article published online by Radio-Canada (www.radio-canada.ca) on 15 April, 2009

and still available electronically online (a copy republished on March 20,2013 is attached

at Schedule "8") repeats and republishes the Defamatory Accusation made against Gómez

Umrtia and the Miners Union, and specifically states:

Le procureur général de la République du Mexique accuse le secrétaire

général du ceñtral syndical des mineurs du Mexique d'avoir volé 55 million

ãe dollars au syndicat. "M. Gomez a pris cet argent dans la fiducie, sans le

distribuer aux travailleurs à qui il était du", explique Leopoldo Valarde

Ortí2, s ous -pro cureur aux affaire s internati onales.

10. Radio-C anadahas a wide readership and viewership, is published electronically and is read

or viewed all over the world, including in British Columbia'

1 l. An article first published in the South Asian Post on August 7,2009 and still available

electronically online (a copy republished on March 20,2013 is attached at Schedule "B")

entitled "Canada's Tale of Broken Treaties" repeats and republished the Defamatory

Accusation and shows a picture of Gómez Urrutia next to the picture of notorious fugitives'

Specifically, the article states:

We have fugitive of Mexico labour leader Napoleón Gómez Urrutia,

accused of embezzling $61 million from a union fund, who says he sought

refuge in Canada on the advice of his lawyers. Proclaiming his innocence,

he wants to fight his case in Canada at your expense.

12. The South Asian Post has a wide online readership and is published electronically and read

all over the world, including in British Columbia.
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1 3. A Vancouver Sun article f,rrst published on January 9,2010 (a copy republished online on

April 17,2013 is attached at Schedule "B" ) entitled"International teamfights extradition

of labour boss",repeats and republishes the Defamatory Accusation, and specifically

states:

The country's embattled mining and metalworkers'union head, Napoleón

GómezUrrutia, who represents workers at several Canadian-owned

operations, fled to Canada to avoid being arrested on fraud charges

pèttuitti.tg to the alleged mismanagement of a workers' trust fund worth $55

million US.

14. The Vancouver Sun has a wide readership and is published electronically and read all over

the world, including in British Columbia.

1 5. An article first published on February 27 ,2013 in the Vancouver Sun and still available

electronically online (a copy republished online on April 1I,2013 is attached at Schedule

"8") was entitled "Embezzlement anest of powerful union boss shows Mexico's new

president playing hardball". The article repeats and republishes the Defamatory

Accusation, and specifically states :

MEXICO CITY - The arrest of Mexico's most powerful union leader echoes

the hardball tactics of Mexico's once-imperial presidency while pushing

forward an education reform that Enrique Pena Nieto has made a

centerpiece of his new administration.

Elba Esther Gordillo, known for flashing her Hermes handbags and heels,

stood behind bars Wednesday in a grim prison in eastem Mexico City as a

judge read off charges of embezzlement and organized crime. The arrest

iidelined a woman who had tried to mobilize teachers to block a schools

shake-up designed to end her control over hiring and hring of teachers

across the country.

It also sent a message to other union bosses and business magnates: Don't

get in the way of Pena Nieto, whose Institutional Revolutionary Party has

newly retumed to the power it held for seven straight decades, when

incoming presidents often crushed those who challenged them'

This is an old tactic,let's hope that it doesn't just stop there, as it did in the

past, when a single case was enough to calm things down and add

iegitimacy" to presidential power, said Jose Antonio Crespo, an analyst at

thé Center for Economic Studies. "Let's hope this doesn't stop and that it
becomes something more systematic, for which there is a burning need."
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built of
economy. I ike Gordillo, their resistance could be an obstacle to Pena

Nieto's pledges to modernize and open up Mexico's economy.

But the tough message of Tuesday's arrest may have been enough. Gordillo,
whose L5 million-member National Union of Education Workers organized

protests against Pena Nieto's education reform signed into law this week,

was pulled off a plane arriving from San Diego late Tuesday and taken to

Mexico City's women's prison.

It was a dizzyingfall from power for a woman often credited with swinging

a presidential election and who maintained properties worth millions of
dollars in Southern California, where she spent much of her time.

Gordillo, 68, was charged with embezzling2 billion pesos (about $160

million) from the union she has led for nearly a quarter century' The judge

in the case said he would rule in three to six days on whether the evidence is

sufficient to merit a trial.

If found guilty, Gordillo could face 30 years in prison.

t...1

For many, Gordillo stood as a s)rmbol of the powers that dominate Mexico'

She was a favourite of newspaper cartoonists because of her immediately

recognizable face and designer clothes and accessories. Prosecutors said she

spent nearly $3 million in purchases at Neiman Marcus department stores

urittg union funds, as well as $17,000 in U.S. plastic surgery bills and $1

million to buy a home near San Diego.

It was unclear if the arrest would force Gordillo out of her union leadership

position. Mexican mining union boss Napoleón 9ómez Umrtia has

^a¡finrrarl fn L^t,{ l":. nncr '-nra than oÇ¡on ha 
-^.rerl

Î¡ llona ,lo

amid accusations that he misappropriated $55 million in union
funds.[emphasis added]

16. Collectively, these articles, which arc attached at Schedule "8", are referred to herein as

the "Republications of the Defamatory Accusation".

17. The Republications of the Defamatory Accusation are defamatory of Gómez Urrutia and

the Miners Union (in the sense that they would tend to lower the Plaintiffs in the eyes of a

reasonable person and injure the Plaintiffs' reputation) in their natural and ordinary

meaning and in the context in which they were made, and meant and were understood by
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the public to mean that Gómez Urrutia and the Miners Union are criminals, are corrupt, are

dishonest, are thieves, and have not acted in the best interest of the Miners Union's

membership, and in the case of Gómez Urrutia, that he is living an opulent lifestyle by

illegally using the Miners' Union funds.

18. The Republications of the Defamatory Accusation each referred to the Plaintiffs, each

republished and repeated the Defamatory Accusation and were each read in British

Columbia.

Republications of the Defam atory Accusation (Audiovisual)

19. Between April and December 2007, during peak television hours and with national

coverage, Televisa Channel 2, one of the most widely viewed television networks in

Mexico, repeatedly broadcast the following paid advertisement in Spanish (translated into

English below and attached hereto at Schedule "C"), which can still be viewed online at the

time of filing:

We, the Mexico miners ask Napoleón Gómez Urrutia to return. Yes! To

return the $55 million he stole fro-r.x, the miners; to come back and pay all

the felonies he has committed against the Union; and to come back so he

may know the darkness of a prison cell, because he has never known the

darkness of a mine!

20. Another illustrative advdrtisement, which was broadcast in Spanish and repeated many

times between April and December 2007 ottTelevisa Channel 2 and on another widely

viewed Mexican television network, AúecaTelevision Channel 13, and which can still be

viewed online at the time of filing (translated into English below and attached hereto at

Schedule "C"), stated:

I have worked in the mine all my life; what could frighten me? Darkness?

Lack of air? No man, my fear is to bump into Napoleón Gómez Umrtia, he

is dark indeed. He steals in front of us, he cheats us and, on top of it all, he

threatens us. I do not know about other things, but I do know that our worst

nightmare is named Napoleón Gómez Umrtia.

21. Another television advertisement which was broadcast between April and December 2007

and during peak hours, and which still can be viewed online at the time of frling (translated

into English below and attached hereto at Schedule "C"), stated the following in Spanish:
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Napoleón Gómez Urrutia does not like Mexican miners, but he like us three

metres underground. He steals $55 million which are ours, not his' He

threatens us and even hits us if we are not with him; and now with this

labour strike mess, he also takes away the bread from our mouths. 
'We also

like this thug, but we'd like to see him in jail!

22. Schedule ((C" incorporates by reference these three broadcasts (the "Three Defamatory

Broadcasts") to this Notice of Civil Claim. The Three Broadcasts are defamatory of

Gómez Umltia and the Miners Union (in the sense that they would tend to lower the

Plaintiffs in the eyes of a reasonable person and injure the Plaintiffs' reputation) in their

natural and ordinary meaning and in the context in which they were made, and meant and

were understood by the public to mean that Gómez Urrutia and the Miners Union are

criminals, are comrpt, are dishonest, are thieves, and have not acted in the best interest of

the Miners Union's membership, and in the case of GómezUmrtia, that he is living an

opulent lifestyle by illegally using the Miners' Union funds'

23.Thedefamation in the Three Defamatory Broadcasts was achieved and crafted by the

Defendants or their agents combining images and scenes, false statements and accusations,

music and narration, and the combination of all these elements, which by themselves and in

their totality were calculated to convey and did convey to the viewing public the

defamatory imputations described in the previous paragraph'

24. TheThree Defamatory Broadcasts each referred to the Plaintiffs, were and could be viewed

around the world, including in British Columbia, and each republished and repeated the

Defamatory Accusation.

25. The motive of the Defendants in making and repeating the Defamatory Accusation

knowing that it would be republished was to cause injury to the reputations of both

Plaintiffs, to harm the Plaintiffs and for profit.

Plaintiffs' address for service:

863 Hamilton Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6B 2R7

Fax number address for service (if any): None.

E-mail address for service (if any): None.
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Place of tial: Væcouver, Bdtish Columbia

The address of the registry is: 800 Smithe Street, Vancouver,tsC V6Z2El

Date: ApÅl 17,2013

DAVID J. MARTIN and

CASEY L. LEGGETT

Rule 7-1(1) of the Supreme Court Civil Rules states

(1) Unless all parties of record consent or the court otherwise orders, each party of record to

an action must, within 35 days after the end of the pleading period,

(a) prepare a list of documents in Form 22 that lists

ÌÐ utl documents that are or have been in the party's possession or control

and that could, if available, be used by atty pafiy at trial to prove or

disprove a material fact, and

(iÐ all other documents to which the party intends to refer at trial, and

(b) serve the list on all parties of record.
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APPENDIX

Part 1: CONCISE SUMMARY OF NATURE OF CLAIM:

The plaintiff claims against the Defendants for damages as compensation for personal injuries

arising out of a motor vehicle accident which occurred on or about 22Match20ll.

Part2¿ THIS CLAIM ARISES FROM THE FOLLOWING:

A personal injury arising out of:

a motor vehicle accident
medical malpractice
another cause

A dispute conceming:

contaminated sites
construction defects
real property (real estate)
personal property
ihe provision of goods or services or other general commercial matters

investment losses

the lending of money
an employment relationshiP
a will or other issues concerning the probate of an estate

a matter not listed here

Part 3: THIS CLAIM INVOLVES:

a class action
maritime law
aboriginal law
constitutional law
conflict of laws
none ofthe above
do not know

Part 4z
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SCHEDULE 66A))
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Who will blink in Mexican standoff?

The leader of a powerful Mexican mine workers' union -- who fled to B.C. after being accused of
embezzling $61 million -- has vowed to launch, by cellphone, a national strike unprecedented in

Mexico's modern history.

By The Vancouver ProvinceAu gusf 2T, 2006

llil wno witt ltintt in laexiæn standoff?

The leader of a powerfrrl Mexican mine workers' union -- who fled to B.C. after being accused of embezzling $61 million - has vowed to launch, by

cellphone, anational strike unprecedented in Mexico's modem history.

In an exclusive interview \ü¡th The Province from a secret Lower Mainland location Friday, Napoleon Gomez Um¡tia -- whose removal as head of the

2g0,000-member National Union of Miners and Metalworkers (Los Mineros) in February sparked six months of crippling labour un¡est across Mexico --

saij he and his union executive have set a deadline of Sept. 4 for his reinstatement and the dropping of allegations against him'

If neither take place, he will call for a national strike, he said.

Escalating unrest in Mexico has already triggered a warning from the Department of Foreign Affairs.

,,protests and subsequent civil unrest in general have affecled local security and resulted in vandalism, a¡son attacks, violence and one reported fatality," a

cu¡rent Canadian travel advisor¡' states. "The situation remains tense."

Gomez Unutia, a 60-year-old Oxford-educated economist u,ho fìve years ago took over leadership of Los Mineros from his father, Napoleon Gomez

Sada, has been highly critical ofMexico's labour and safety standards aad has organized as many æ 30 r'r'ildcat strikes.

He was replaced as union he ad a¡ld accused of corruption shortly after demanding an investigation into the de ath of 65 workers in a Feb l9 coal-mine

explosion he called "industrial homicide."

His removal led immediately to thres copper-mine sÍikes and sparked union walkouts and street demonstrations across the country as miners,

electricians, bus drivers, airiine workers, ieachers a¡d farmers marched to protest government interference in union activities

Both the RCMP and the Department of Justice are aware of Gomez Urrutia's presence in B.C., but refused to comment on the case

Mexican Foreign Minister Luis Emesto Derbez said Thursday that the govemment plans to request Gomez urrutia's extradition from canada within days.

Gomez Um.rtia" in an intorvie$,from an untraceable cellphone he uses to conduct union business from his home in an undisclosed Vancouver suburb, said

Friday he fled Mexico witlr his wife and three sons, fearing for his family's safety. His sons are "dispersed" across Ca¡rada for their own security.

He first fled to the U.S. in early March and then, on the advice of his lawyers, to Canada, arriving in Vancouver later that month

,'Canada is a more independent country, more liberal in terms of immigration and much more respectful of human rights," he said'

In the Mexican press, president Vincente Fox has repeatedly called for Gomez'extradition, though no formal ctiminal charges against him have been

approved by the Mexican courts.

',Napoleon Gomçz Urrutia is accused of acts of corruption against workers and there is information that he, from outside the country, specifically Canada"

was directing this regrettable operation [oivil unrest]," a Fox spokesman has been quoted æ saying

http://www,canada.com/theprovince/news/story.html?id:77e3c59-9dea-4830-b3ff-aîf3f32 414/20t3
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Gomez U¡rutia maintains he is being "persecuted" for his opposition to Mexico's labour policies and because nriners under his leadership have clashed
with powerful economic and political interests.

"They are false accusations, completely false, a bunch oflies," he said when asked about the $61 million he is accused ofstea.ling. "This is like a curtain
ofsmoke they created in order to deflect attention away from serious problems."

He says the money remains in union accounts, which have been frozen by the Mexican government,

In June, Gomez Urrutia met with several Ca¡radian MPs. NDP leader Jack Layton subsequently sent a letter to the Mexican ambassador in Ca.nada

lending his support.

Canada's United Steelworkers Union, which has a "strategic alliance" with Los Mineros codified in 2003, has passed a resolution in support of Gomez

and sent formal letters ofprotest to representatives ofMexico in Canada.

Steelworkers national director Ken Neumann said Friday that the union is "hosting" Gomez Um¡tia during his stay in Canada but has not accepted money

from him "in any way, shape or form."

Steve Hunt, Steelworkers Westem and Northem Canada director, added that "the côurts [in Mexico] have systematically thrown out these charges against

[Gomez]" and that "the Mexican government has úied to discredit a union leader that has been able to go against the grain of the Mexican policy in

regards to wages and benefits."

Gomez Unutia, who has been conducting union business, exercising, attending concerts and writing a book about his recent experiences during his

Mexican standoffin the Lower Mainland, says he will retum to his homeland only if it is safe to do so. He has not ¡uled out making a refugee claim æ a
political refugee ifan extradition order is brought against him.

Gomez Um¡tia's threat to launch crippling strikes on Sept. 4 came on the hee ls of his call for the Mexican govemment to make good on a deal struck last

Monday to end a violent, l4l-day strike at Sicarts4 Mexico's largest steel rebar plant.

The govemment-brokered settlement befween plant owner Grupo Villacero and2,300 Los Mineros members would have seen wages and benefits

boosted by oight per cent for plant workers, two ofwhom were shot dead by federal police during the protracted stike.

The strike was lifted, union offrcials claim, on the condition that Gomez Umrtia be reinstated as the democratically elected head of Los Mineros and tlat
"false" accusations that he masterminded a $61-million money laundering scheme be revoked, both within l5 days.

The Mexican Secrotary ofLabour has said that his government will not recognize him æ head ofthe union nor reúact its accusations he pilfered workers'

funds.

mroberts@png. canwest. com

@ (c) CanWest MediaWorks Publications Inc.
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Un syndicaliste mexicain menacé d'extradition
Mise à our le mercredi 15 avril 2009 à 20 h 46 HAP

Page 1 of3

Napoleon Gomez Urrutia Photo :

PC/Fred Chartrand

Réfugié au Canada depuis trois ans, Napoleon Gomez Urrutia est accusé d'avoir volé

I'argeit du Syndicat des mineurs du Mexique. Mais le secrétaire général de la centrale se dit

victime de persécution politique.

Le Mexique demande I'extradition du leader syndical Napoleon Gomez Urrutia, qui est

réfugié depuis trois ans au Canada. Début d'une saga judiciaire sans précédent entre les

deux pays.

Le bureau du procureur général de la République du Mexique accuse le secrétaire général

de la centrale syndicale des mineurs du Mexique d'avoir volé 55 millions de dollars au

syndicat. < M. Gomez a pris cet argent dans la fiducie, sans le distribuer aux travailleurs à

qui il était dû >, explique Leopoldo Velarde Ortiz, sous-procureur aux
affaires i nternationales.

Napoleon Gomez Urrutia affirme au contraire qu'il est victime d'une persécution politique et
qu'il a I'appui de tous les membres du syndicat. < Sije rentrais au Mexique sans garantie

pour ma liberté ou ma sécurité de la pad de mon gouvernement, je serais immédiatement
en prison ou mort >, affìrme-t-il.

< Nous sommes victimes de persécution politique de la parl d'un gouvernement mexicain

d'extrême droite, qui déteste les syndicats et veut les faire disparaître, et aussi avec la plus

grosse industrie minière du Mexique avec qui il est en collusion. )) - Le leader syndical

Napoleon Gomez Urrutia

Tout a commencé par une explosion

http://www.radio-canada.ca./nouvellesÀtratio nall2009l04lI5l005-extradition-gomez-mexiqu"' 312012013



Lln syndicaliste mexicain menacé d'extradition I Radio-Canada.ca Page2 of 3

Les ennuis du secrétaire général du syndicat des mineurs ont vra¡ment commencé avec
I'explosion, en février 2006, de la mine de Pasta de Conchos, dans le nord du Mexique. Ce
coup de grisou tue 65 mineurs. Deux corps seulement ont été récupérés.

<< J'ai accusé la compagnie d'homicide industriel, que vous appelez ici "meurtre corporatif'.
Quand je I'ai accusé, j'ãi commencé à recevoir des menaces. J'ai aussi demandé la
démissíon du ministre du Travail de l'époque >, raconte Napoleon Gomez Urrutia'

La mine appartient à la multinationale Grupo Mexico, qui est entre autres le troisième
producteui mondial de cuivre. Lorsque la compagnie est privatisée, en 1990, elle s'engage à

verser 5 % des actions aux employés.

Elle ne le fera qu'en 2OO4 à I'issue d'une négociation avec le Syndicat des mineurs. Total à
verser: 55 millions de dollars. Ceux qu'on accuse Napoleon Gomez Urrutia d'avoir volés'

L'appui du milieu syndical

Les membres du Syndicat des mineurs sont convaincus que leur secrétaire général n'a

jamais volé ces SS m¡ll¡ons de dollars, dont la moitié a déjà été distribuée aux travailleurs,

< Tout I'argent est là, à la banque. C'est documenté. On a la preuve comptable, le
gouvernement aussi I'a. Le procureur général aussi I'a >>, affirme Jose Barajas Prado,

trésorier Syndicat des mineurs, qui compte 35 000 membres dans 120 sections'

Une firme d'audit suisse I'a vérifié: I'argent est bel et bien à la banque et les comptes du

syndicat ont été gelés à la suite des aðcusations. Comment aurait-il pu être volé? Mystère

du système judiciaire mexicain

Grupo Mexico a refusé la demande d'entrevue de Radio-Canada. < Ce n'est pas dans notre

inteiêt >, a fait valoir la compagnie. Par contre, une vaste campagne anti-Napoleon Gomez

a été lancée sur les ondes deJgrandes télévisions mexicaines. Le syndicat poursuit les

télévisions et le Grupo Mexico pour diffamation.

http:/iwww.radio-canada.calnouvellesÀtrationall2009l04ll5l005-extradition-gomez-mexiqu' 3t2012013
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Plusieur3 manifestations et grèves ont été organisées en appui à Napoleon Gomez. L'une

d'entre elles a été durement réprimée en 2006: deux manifestants ont été tués par balle et il
y a eu une centaine de blessés. Les travailleurs de la principale mine de cuivre du Grupo

Mexico, à Cananea, sont en grève depuis près de deux ans. La mine est fermée.

Audience en extradition

Depuis les locaux du Syndicat des travailleurs de I'acier, à Vancouver, Napoleon Gomez

continue à diriger le syndicat mexicain. ll a aussi l'appui des grandes centrales syndicales
canadiennes et du Nouveau Parti démocratique du Canada.

ll souhaite vivement son audience en extradition pour prouver son innocence, ici, au

Canada. < Nous aurions ici un procès équitable au Canada, ce que nous n'aurions pas au

Mexique. Je fais confiance à l'objectivité et aux normes du système judiciaire du

Canada >, dit-¡|.

Le ministère canadien de la Justice ne veut pas confirmer la demande d'extradition de

Napoleon Gomez, sous prétexte que toutes les demandes d'extradition sont confidentielles.

À plus long terme, Napoleon Gomez espère que le président Barak Obama tiendra sa

prôr"ss"-de renégocier I'Accord de libre-échange nord-américain (ALENA) de façon à

iot""r les compagnies minières mexicaines à renforcer les normes de sécurité et à améliorer

la condition générale des travailleurs.

D'après un repoñage de Jean-Michel Leprince

En complément

Vidéo - Le Jean-Michel nce

http://www.radio-canada.calnouvelles/1.{atio na1120091041151005-extradition-gomez-mexiqu". 312012013
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By the time you read this, Michael Le will be on his way to stand trial for one of tlte worst gangland

slayings in the history of British Columbia
The 24-year-old alleged leader ofthe notorious Red Scorpion gang, who also goes by the name Quang
Vin Thang, was a¡rested in The Philippines last week.
He has been charged with the October 2007 Surrey Six slayings, which saw two innocent young men get

killed as well.
Shortly after his mes! Antonio fuvera, The Philippines deputy of operations md deportation rvith tI¡e Bureau of lmmigration's

lnterpol Unit in Moila, said a tem ofthree RCMP oflicers will feich Thang md escort him to Cuada as soon æ the bureau's board ofconmissioners issues the o¡der for his

deportation

Now that's what you call an effective system based on mutual legal assistance treaties:

Fortunately for us, Le was busted in a country that abides by the treaty it has signed
Canada, on the other hild does not.
Chances are if Le was a Filipino national, wanted in The Philippines for a similar crime and was caught creeping into Vancouver, he would spend

the next decade or so using the Czuradian system to avoid the long arm ofthe law.
Be it deportation or extradition, the way Canada deals with intemational fugitives who have made their way to our shores is heavily influenced by

politics, judges and lawyers.
Throw in the Canadian Charter ofRights, under which fugitives can seek any number ofprotections, ard it will take years to send a wanted person

home
When it comes to extradition, wealthy fugitives live the high life in Canada while their high-priced lawyers dance around our legal system, which
hæ limitless options for the accused.

We have fugitive banker Rakesh Saxena who has for over a decade stymied all efforts by Thailand to get him to answer charges of embezzling $88

million from the Bangkok Bank of Commerce. Come July 2010, the fraud charges against him in Thailand will become statute-baned and he could

walk free.

We have ñrgitive Mexican labour leader Napoleon Gomez Urrutia accused of embezzling $61 million from a union fund, who says he sought

refuge in Ca¡ada on the advice ofhis lawyers. Proclaiming his innocence, he wants to fight his case in Canada at your expense.

The Philippines in particular has been harshly critical ofCanada while we afford their fugitives protection - and in some cases a pe¡rnanent escaPe

from their courts.

We have Gloria and Faustino Chingkoe in Richmond, B.C. accused of allegedly defrauding The Philippines govemment of $75 million.

Ironicalll,, ourjudges have scolded The Philippines for having a tardyjudicial system while allowing Rodolfo Pacificador to stay in Canada. He is

wanted in The Philippines for his alleged role in the assassination of a provincial govemor. Earlier, we granted Ferdinand Marcos crony Detvey Go

Dee, wanted for plunder, asylum in Canada

India is totally frustrated with Ca¡ada because it is unable to get its hands on a whole range offugitives, including Subhash Agravyal ofOttawa,

u,anted in India as a suspect in the 2003 rnurder of his sister, Canadian Dr. Asha Goel; Harnek Singh Gretì'al, who leads a pou'erful Sikh sect,

wanted for allegedly inciting a deadly riot; and Malkiat Kaur Sidhu and Surjit Singh Badesha of Maple Ridge, $'anted for the alleged contract

killing of Sidhu's daughter.
Similarly, our deportation system is in shambles.

China has many of ìts most wanted seeking refugee status in Canada after they fled charges in their homela¡d.
Leading the pack is Lai Changxing, ar accused smuggling mastermind who has been fighting to stay in Canada for almost a decade Others include

several bankers accused in multi-million dolla¡ embezzlement schemes.

Even u,hen deportation orders are issued, those slated for retum find ways to stay in Canada, like Mikhail Lennikov, a former Russian KGB agent

who has sought sanctuary at Vancouver's First Lutheran Church
The Iist offugitives who have made Canada their safe haven is long and large.
It is an ugl¡,reputation that is growing because our politicians, without exception, do not have the wherer¡,ithal to institute extradition/deportation

protocols that lead to speedy and effective removal
Canada has signed mutual legal assistance treaties ând has extradition concords rvith dozens ofcountries around the world.
When we want a fugitive returned to Ca¡lada, these agreements a¡e enforced u,ithout delay by our pafners.
When our partners \À,ant their fugitives returned fronr Canada, these treaties âre not $,orth the paper they are written on.

Ed;toiel
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International team fights extradition of labour boss

A team of Canadian and international labour leaders is demanding the Mexican government
drop legal proceedings against a mining union boss who's been resisting extradition in
Vancouver for nearly three years.

By Vancouver SunJanuary 9, 2010

A team of Canadian and international labour leaders is demanding the Mexican govemment drop legal proceedings agaínst a mining union boss who's

been resisting extradition in Vancouver for nearly three years.

The country's embaftled mining and metalworkers'union head, Napoleon Gornez Urrutia, who represents workers at several Canadian-owned operations,

fled to Canada to avoid being arrested on fraud charges pertaining to the alleged mismanagement of a workers'trust fund worth $55 million US.

The team also planned to champion Gomez's case -- and decry the curent state of Mexica¡ unionism -- in a Friday meeting with Guillermo Rishchynski,

Canadian ambæsador to Mexico.

,,We made a commitment to Napoleon [Gomez] that we're going to make sure that justice comes to him," said Ken Neumann, national director for
Canada with the United Steelworkers. "Mexico is a NAFTA partner with Canada and the United States and the fact is that we should not be sitting back

and allowing these repressions to take place."

The Canadia¡ and international unions' petition on Gomez's behalfma¡ks their latest foray into a complex case that has generated front-page headlines in

Mexico over the past three years. The case hæ been marked by allegations offraud, a mining disaster that claimed 65 lives, legal hijinks and a strike at

one ofthe rvorld's most lucrative copper pits that has dragged on for more than two years.

Gomez and his backers -- rvho include NDP Ieader Jack Layton-allege that successive federal govemments and mining giant Grupo Mexico have

persecuted him for his political independence, tough negotiating postures and his promotion ofrvorkplace safety.

His supporters hail him as an independent labour leader, r,r,hose tactics set him apart from other Mexican union bosses, who often have checkered

reputations for corruption, leading lavish lifestyles and putting political agendas ahead ofworkers' interests.

While Mexican union leaders traditionall¡ negotiate contracts based on the inflation rate a¡d minimum u'age increases, Munoz said that Gomez has r¡'on

large pay increases for his members by tying wages to productivity and mineral prices.

The differences between Gomez and other union leaders go beyond bargaining tactics, howeve¡ Gomez is the son of the late mining union boss,

Napoleon Gomez Sada

He went to Oxford University, ran the national mint and ran a government-owned mine. He assumed control of the mining union after the death of his

father in 2001--even though union rules stipulated that only miners could become president.

@ (c) CanWest MediaWorks Publications Inc.
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Embezzlement arrest of powerful union boss shows Mexico's new
president playing hardball
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Iffbund guilty, Gordillo could face 30 years in prison.

Asked if he had other cases planned, Attomey General Jesus Murillo Ka¡am told the Televisa news network, "I don't have evidence æ clea¡ as in

this case."

Still, analysts said other powerful figures will surely take notice.

"I think there will be more willingness to negotiate ard accept" refonns "rathe¡ than engage in confrontation," said Crespo

Pena Nieto went on television Tuesday night to say the case wæ strictly based on enforcing the rule of law.

,,This investigation has to be pursued to the very end but always adhering to the rule of law," he said, without referring to Gordillo by name

The president also spoke directly to the millions of teachers in the two-minute national broadcast, saying his government will support them and

respect the union's autonomy.

,'My govemment will continue to be your ally and will continue to work to improve the conditions in rvhich you carry the high mission of
educating tomorrow's citizens," he said.

'With education refonn now enacted, Pena Nieto is also proposing to open the state oil company to more private investment, a move that could

awaken opposition fiom the oil workers union The adminiitration is also proposing measures to bring more competition in the highly concentrated

television and telecom sectors, steps that business magnates have long tried to stymie with court appeals

There is a sense that ,'this is a message to all the other corupt leaders," said Humberto Castillo, a 55-year-old retired teacher from Mexico State,

who was reading a newspaper story ãbout Gordillo's arrest while he waited for his daugbter to come out of a job interview "I thought she was

untouchable."

For many, Gordillo stood as a symbol of the powers that dominate Mexico. She wæ a favourite of newspaper cafoonists because of her

immediately recognizable face and designer ôlothes and accessories. Prosecutors said she spent nearly $3 million in purchases at Neiman Ma¡cus

department stores using union funds, ur *.ll ^ $17,000 in U.S. plastic surgery bills and $l million to buy a home near San Diego.

It was unclea¡ if the arrest would force Gordillo out of her union leadership position. Mexican mining union boss Napoleon Gomez Umrtia has

continued to hold his post more than four years after he moved to Canada amid accusations that he misappropriated $55 million in union funds.

Many Mexicans immediately began suggesting prosecution of other union leaders Opposition parties.mentioned the boss of the oil workers union,

Ca¡lós Romero Deschamps, whol ur"oid'.ing tJMexican news medi4 gave his son a $2 million Ferrari and whose daughter posted Facebook

photos ofher trips to Europe aboard private jets and yachts.

Romero Deschamps' imm¡nity from prosecution as a legislator - a status he still enjoys - helped keep him from going to jail in a scandal over

his union's illegal $61 3 million campaign donation to the PRI in 2000.

But if Deschamps stayed within the womb of the PRI while under fire, Gorditlo was unusually defiant, allying at times with presidents from the

National ection narty, helping create a new political party and finally bolting from the PRI, where she had long been an influential f,rgure. Many

credited her party wiitr putiing enough votesìo swing the narrow 2006 election to National Action's Felipe Calderon.

Sergio Aguayo, a political analyst at the elite Colegio de Mexico, said Gordillo "wasn't just a shadow potver, but one that wanted to be a political

power. "

,'In Pena Nieto's vision of Mexico, no one can be above the president," Aguayo said. "It's the same old imperial presidency."

Gordillo,s combativeness may have led her to miscalculate PenaNieto's willingness to reinstate the old tradition ofunquestioned presidential

authority

'rShe underestimated him," columnist and political analyst Raymundo Riva Palacio said of Pena Nieto.

The pRI, which ruled Mexico ftom 1929 to 2000, spent l2 years out of power before retuming to the presidency with Pena Nieto's 2012 election

vlctory.

Gordillo,s a¡rest recalled the 1989 detention ofonce-feared oil union boss Joaquin Hemandez Galicia He had criticized the presidential candidacy

ofCarlos Salinas and threatened a strike ifSalinas privatized any part ofthe government oil monopoly.

On Jan. 10, 1989, about a month after Salinas took office, soldiers used a bazooka to blow down the door ofHernandez's home in the GulfCoast

city of Ciudad Madero.

He was fieed from prison after Salinas left office.

Salinas'sweep ofold, unco-operative union bosses also led to opening the way for a new, up-and-coming leader in the teachers union, Gordillo'

who wæ at first seen as a reformer.

Gordillo,s arrest alone is fa¡ from enough to help Pena Nieto improve Mexico's schools. So great is the union's control over hiring that even the

government acknowledges it's not sure how many schools, teachers or students exist in Mexico.

http://www.vancouversun.com/newsÆmbezzlementtarrest+powerful*teachers*uniontbos..' 411I12013
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The Mexican education system has been persistently one of the worst perfonners among the world's developed economies, with few signs of
iriprovement Nearly every Mexican 4-yåar-old is in pre-school, but only 47 per cenf are expected to graduate high school. ln the U.S , the number

is closer to 80 per cent

In a television intewiew last week about education reform, the interviewer told Gordillo that she was the most hated woman in Mexico.

''There is no one more loved by their people tha¡r I," Gordillo answered. "I care about the teachers. This is a deep and serious dispute about public

education."

Union leaders voiced support for her during a meeting in Guadalajara but issued no formal statement and there were no public demonstrations by

teachers.

,'To our leader, teache¡ Elba Esther Gordillo, we affrm our loyalty, our love and our solidarity," Juan Diaz de la Torre, the union's general

secrel.ary, said during the meeting.

Associated Press write¡s Olga R. Rodriguez, Adriana Gomez Licon and Michael Weissenstein contributed to this report.
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In this photo released by Mexico's federal court system' the head of
Mexico's powerful teachers' union, Elba Esther Gordillo, stands

behind bars as she appears for a hearing at a federal prison in
Mexico City, Wednesduy, Feb. 27 r 2013. Mexicof s most powerful
woman was formally charged with a massive embezzlement scheme

on \Mednesday, standing grim-faced behind bars live on national
television in what many called a clear message that the new

government is asserting its authorify.

Photograph by: Juzgado Sexto de Distrito en Procesos Penales Federales, AP Photo
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